
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
 U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, FORT WORTH DISTRICT 

P.O. BOX 17300 
FORT WORTH, TX 76102-0300 

CESWF-ZA             11 September 2025

MEMORANDUM FOR Southwestern Division Commander, (ATTN: Dr. Maria Wegner/
CESWD-PDP), U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 1100 Commerce Street, Dallas, Texas 
75242-0216 

SUBJECT:  Sulphur River Reallocation Study Project Termination 

1. This memorandum provides notice of termination for subject study.

2. Reference the Feasibility Cost Share Agreement (FCSA) between the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers and the Sulphur River Basin Authority dated February 24, 2005, and amended on
April 3, 2012, in enclosure 1.

3. BACKGROUND.  The initial study effort began in 2005 with limited federal funding to
support a study cost of $11.4 million to recommend conversion of flood storage in Wright
Patman Lake to water supply storage based on flood storage constructed in Cooper (Jim
Chapman) Lake, and mitigation for environmental effects of Cooper Lake on Wright Patman
lands (White Oak Creek Mitigation Area).  In 2012, the FCSA was amended to allow the
acceleration of non-federal funding to continue the study and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
implemented new planning processes which were codified by the Water Resources Reform and
Development Act of 2014.  A re-scoping charette was conducted in August 2013 and through
many delays and 6 years of joint effort, the tentatively selected plan meeting was held in
February 2019. After this time, the study did not proceed forward due to lack of federal and non-
federal funding and the reduction in interest from the non-federal sponsor to fund the remaining
study costs.

4. This study is classified as inactive awaiting reclassification and there has been no explicit
request or reason to pause the study, therefore it should be terminated and fiscally closed out. An
inactive study must be terminated and fiscally closed out if it has been five fiscal years since the
last appropriation of funding.  The last year of Federal funding for the Sulphur River
Reallocation Study was Fiscal Year 2016.

5. Section 1330(b) of the Water Resources Development Act of 2018 extends the timeline for a
feasibility study up to 7 years (if the study is not completed within the first 3 years), as long as
the total study duration does not exceed a total of ten years. Even though this is for studies
initiated after June 2014, we are still held under that rule even through this legacy study.  Since
the last FCSA was signed in April 2012, this study must have been completed by April 2022.
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6. Per the FCSA Amendment number 1, Article II, paragraph K. “The Sponsor understands that
neither execution of this Agreement nor acceptance of the accelerated funds constitutes,
represents. or implies any commitment to budget or appropriate funds for this Study in the future
or to match the amount of accelerated funds that the Sponsor elects to provide. Credit for these
funds toward the Sponsor's cash contribution required by paragraph B. and paragraph C. of this
Article shall be provided only to the extent that additional Federal funds are appropriated for this
Study, and the Sponsor understands that it shall not be entitled to any repayment of these funds
even if the Study is not completed. Nothing herein shall represent, or give rise to, obligations of
the United States.”

7. In accordance with the original 2005 FCSA, Article X, Termination or Suspension, paragraph
A, a letter will be provided to the NFI as notice that the study is terminated by the Government
and the remaining funds will be returned to the Sulphur River Basin Authority.

8. Enclosure 2 reflects the project expenditures through May 31, 2025.  The expenditures
incurred by the Federal Government using Federal and non-Federal funds were $3,299,446.34.
Based on the feasibility cost share agreement, the study was cost shared at 50/50 which Sulphur
River Basin Authority’s share was $1,649,723.17.  Sulphur River Basin Authority provided
$2,220,404.00 in cash and in-kind contributions (WIK) towards their share through acceleration,
though only $955,799.45 in WIK could be applied to balance the cost share control account,
which leaves an excess cash amount of $11,076.28 to be returned to the Sulphur River Basin
Authority.

9. POC for this action is Kathy Spillane, Chief, Civil Project Management at
kathleen.m.spillane@usace.army.mil, or by phone at 817-886-1399.

Encls CALVIN A. KROEGER 
COL, EN 
Commanding 
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ENCLOSURE 1 
FEASIBILITY COST SHARE AGREEMENT 







































ENCLOSURE 2 
 

 
Project Description: 
 
The Sulphur River Feasibility Study is authorized under House Resolution dated  
March 11, 1998. The feasibility study focused on potential conversion of flood storage in Wright 
Patman Lake to water supply storage based on flood storage constructed in Cooper (Jim 
Chapman) Lake, and mitigation for environmental effects of Cooper Lake on Wright Patman 
lands (White Oak Creek Mitigation Area).   
 
Financial Report: 
 

Category Federal Non-Federal Total Cash Work-in-Kind 
Feasibility requirement $  4,442,000.00 $  1,380,000.00 $  3,062,000.00 $  8,884,000.00 
Funded to date $  1,649,723.17 $     705,000.00 $     955,799.45 $  3,310,522.62 
Feas phase obligations $  1,649,723.17    $     693,923.72 $     955,799.45 $  3,299,446.34 
Feas expenditures $  1,649,723.17 $     693,923.72 $     955,799.45 $  3,299,446.34 
Feas available balance $                     0 $       11,076.28 $                     0  
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